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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901653

for

AB109 Direct Services:
Expanding Access and Supporting Success for Returning Citizens in Higher Education 
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on April 5, 2018
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions and Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Responses to Written Questions

Q1) Page 18 of the RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.a.(1) states:

Proposed program is, or will be, an officially recognized campus program with a dedicated, accessible campus location with a mailing address, phone number, and access to regularly available meeting space.

Can the County please clarify the meaning of “an officially recognized campus program”?
A1) The County is looking for organizations that are deeply connected, recognized by, and actively engaged and located on one of the colleges and/or university campuses in Alameda County.  As stated on page 10 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE and BACKGROUND), Item 3.b.:

Official Partnerships with Higher Education – Successful Bidders will demonstrate their official relationship with an institution(s) of higher educations through letters of commitment, letters of support, and/or Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs)…
Q2) Page 10 of RFP, Section B (SCOPE and BACKGROUND), Item 3.b., states:
…The County prefers that programs be officially recognized programs with a dedicated central campus location with meeting space, a mailing address, and a phone number…
Can the County confirm that the mailing address and phone number have to be associated with the campus? 
A2) Yes.  The mailing address and phone number must be associated with the campus.
Q3) Many college-based programs operate under a district, where the district will be the fiscal agent.  Can the County confirm the $100,000 award ceiling is per college or per program versus per fiscal agent or district?  

A3) The $100,000 award ceiling is per Bidder or Contractor.  To further clarify, for this RFP, the County does not recognize fiscal agents or sponsors.  Bid responses are submitted by the lead/prime Bidder; and the lead/prime Bidder must meet all Bidder Qualifications found on pages 12-13 of the RFP (Section C).
Q4) Can a college submit multiple bids as prime?
A4) No. The $100,000 award ceiling is per Bidder.  However, a Bidder can have multiple programs under one bid response.
Q5) Page 40 of the RFP, Section U (SUBMITTAL OF BIDS), Item 4, states:

Only one bid response will be accepted from any one person, partnership, corporation, or other entity...

Laney College, Merritt College, College of Alameda and Berkeley City are all under the Peralta Community College district, and the district represents the fiscal pass through for any bid, so there potentially will be four bids coming out of the Peralta district.  How does the County plan on addressing bid submittals from the Peralta District?
A5) If the Bidder has its own Federal Tax ID Number (TIN) separate from the district, then the Bidder can register in EZSourcing under that Federal TIN and submit accordingly.  

If each college (e.g., Laney, Berkeley City, etc.) within a district has the same Federal Tax ID Number, those Bidders should contact (preferably by email) the County at least 48 hours prior to bid submittal for additional instructions.  Please contact:
Lovell Laurente, Procurement & Contracts Specialist

lovell.laurente@acgov.org
510-208-9621

For this RFP, the County is allowing Bidders to submit their bid responses physically to the County.  Please see Addendum No. 2 for complete instructions on how to submit bid responses physically.
Q6) Page 13 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 2.a., states that an Alameda County vendor is an organization with:

With fixed offices and having a street address within the County for at least six (6) months prior to the issue date of this RFP…
In-kind services are paid by the college or district, therefore some Bidding organization will not have any bills addressed to it.  Can the County confirm if a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will suffice to prove an organizations residence within Alameda County? Or does the Bidder need to provide a letter from the college to prove residency?
A6) If the Bidder’s offices are located on campus which are provided in-kind by the college, the Bidder may provide an MOU or letter that demonstrates six-month residency.
Q7) If a Bidder has submitted a bid through the EZSourcing portal but then wants to make a correction, can the bid then be un-submitted? 
A7) Prior to the Bid Response Due Date, Bidders can modify an existing bid (i.e., a bid that has already been submitted).  Instructions on how to modify an existing bid can be found here:  http://www.acgov.org/gsa/documents/Modify_an_Existing_Bid.pdf.  
Q8) Regarding the required signature pages, does the County have any restrictions on who can sign? For example, does the college president have to sign or can the Chief Financial Officer sign?
A8) Documents can be signed by any person who is able contractually bind on behalf of the Bidder.  
Q9) Is there a page limit on the budget narrative? 
A9) The budget narrative do not have a page limit.
Q10) Page 13 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 2.b., states that an Alameda County vendor is an organization:

Which holds a valid business license issued by the County or a city within the County.
Can the County specify how a 501(c)3 non-profit, government agency, or public institution of higher education can meet this requirement?
A10) If an organization is issued a business license by the County or a city within the County, then the valid business license should be provided.  

If a Bidder does not hold a valid business license issued by the County or a city within the County, the Bidder should list this as an exception on the Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments form found on page 19 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.  In this case, and in lieu of a business license, the Bidder should provide documented proof that it is an entity in Alameda County able to provide services.  An example would be a taxpayer status letter from the IRS with the Bidder’s name and address (in Alameda County), or a Business Tax Certificate issued by the County or a city within the County. 

Q11) Understanding that this is performance-based contract, some of the current programs range from one to two years, depending on the student and their educational goals.  How does that fit into the expectations of meeting the RFP outcomes?  As an organization, the goal is not to push students outside of their comfort zones to meet set benchmarks.  How will the County take into consideration organizations reaching performance benchmarks in a one-year contract period?
A11) The County will look at short-terms goals.  Please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES).
Q12) What does the County do with unused funds?  Do they go back to the County?  Will current other contracts be augmented?
A12) All funds are committed to be disbursed in the community through Community Based Organizations (CBO’s).  In the event that Alameda County is unsuccessful in committing the money through this RFP, the Alameda County Probation Department (ACPD) will go back to the Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee (CCP-EC) and make a recommendation (e.g., put out another RFP, augment contracts, etc.)—but it depends on the results of this RFP.  
Q13) What is the range of panelist selected to evaluate bids?
A13) Bid responses will be evaluated by a County Selection Committee (CSC).  The CSC may be composed of County staff and other parties that may have expertise or experience in providing educational services.  

It is the County’s intention to have at least one CSC panelist who is formerly incarcerated since that is the population being served through this RFP.
Q14) In reference to collaborations, can an organization be represented on multiple bids as long as they are listed as the prime Bidder on only one bid?
A14) Yes.  While an organization can only submit one bid response as the lead/prime Bidder, it may be named as a collaborator or subcontractor to any number of other bids.
Q15) Can organizations perform their own outreach and/or inreach to reentry clients?  Or do organizations have to rely exclusively on DPO referrals?
A15) Pages 18-19 of the RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.b., has been revised as follows (see Addendum No. 2 for complete revisions):

Engage and correspond with prospective students that have an interest in pursuing a certification or degree in higher education and/or could transfer from a jail/prison school to an institution of higher education.  Prospective students, for the purposes of this RFP include but are not limited to:  individuals in jail or prison that will return to Alameda County as target clients, defined by the RFP, that have the interest and/or potential to achieve a certification or degree from an institution of higher education.  Eligibility of clients will be verified by ACPD.

Regarding clients served through the program, clients have to qualify under the target population in order to be funded through the program.  Page 22 of the RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 2, has also been revised as follows (see Addendum No. 2 for complete revisions):

Referral Process: In most cases, clients will be identified and referred to the Contractor(s) by the client’s Deputy Probation Officer (DPO) upon completion of a comprehensive, evidence-based criminogenic risk and needs assessment. Referrals will be comprised of target clients who have been assessed as meeting programmatic prerequisites and have a demonstrated desire to access higher education. Participation in programs will be added to the client’s Case Plan and outcomes will be tracked in relation to their overall Probation outcomes.  

Clients may also be referred to the program by other community service providers that work with the target population (e.g., other AB109 contracted providers). When referrals are received from outside of ACPD, a client’s eligibility for the program shall be confirmed by ACPD prior to enrollment.  Contractor shall detail all proposed referral sources outside of ACPD and the process for receiving and verifying those referrals with ACPD.   

The County will only fund in-reach services for verifiable target clients that will be exiting on Probation within six (6) months of release; paid services on-campus will be limited to the defined target population in the RFP.
Q16) Can the County clarify if programs can initiate the outreach process with clients that are in custody and/or on probation?
A16) The outreach process to prospective clients can begin in-custody, only if the client is planned to exit incarceration to be placed on Probation in Alameda County and can be verified as an eligible client within the target population.  Eligible client referrals can come from Probation Officers and community-based organizations, but eligibility must be confirmed by ACPD.

Q17) Can funds from this RFP be used to serve formerly incarcerated people that are not PRCS or are not 1170(h)?
A17) Fundable in-reach services include in-reach to clients in custody that will exit on Probation in Alameda County. Clients served must be realigned clients as defined by the Probation Department and eligibility will be verified by ACPD.  

Q18) Can the County clarify if clients have to currently be on supervision or can they be cleared from paperwork? 
A18) Clients must be actively on Probation at the time of enrollment in the program.  

Q19) If a Contractor already has clients on probation and are on active supervision that have been referred in their program, can those clients be counted for this contract?  Or will only new referrals be counted?
A19) Clients that are currently in the program may be counted if Probation can confirm eligibility as part of the target population as defined in the RFP.

Q20) Understanding that this is a one-year contract, and most programs are at least two years, would the County consider allowing students in their second year of an existing program to qualify under this RFP in order to reach benchmarks?
A20) Yes (see Q/A#19 above).  Clients that are currently in the program may be counted if Probation can confirm eligibility as part of the target population as defined in the RFP.  The County has adjusted the goals in the RFP.  

Please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES).
Q21) Is the County using the COMPAS risk assessment tool? 
A21) The County is in the process of piloting the COMPAS risk/needs assessment tool, but it has not been rolled out to all divisions.  Currently, it is only being used by the PRCS unit.

Q22) Can the County provide an estimate on the number of referrals provided annually in Alameda County?
A22) The County has only provided the number of clients in the target population.  Because this is a new program, ACPD does not know, nor can it estimate, the number of referrals that will be provided annually.
Q23) What is the criteria for the referral?  Will there be a template for how to assess if the student is college ready for the program? 
A23) Referrals of eligible clients may come from the supervising Probation Officer, based on the results of the Risk and Needs Assessment or from other community-based organizations. All clients referred from outside of ACPD must have their eligibility confirmed by ACPD in order to be considered an “eligible client” for funding.

Q24) Has the County established what the standard of completion is for this program? Or will that be worked out with each Contractor?
A24) Standards for program completion is dependent upon the programs offered. This goal is to ensure a service so that probation clients have an opportunity to have barriers removed from them in order to access and achieve a higher education degree.  The County is looking towards community partners to explain the best way to achieve these goals.  

Q25) Page 22 of RFP, Section G (DELIVERABLES), Item 1, states:
This will be a performance-based contract with measurements and standards.  The performance measures focus on whether clients are better off as a result of the services provided, and also look at the quality and efficiency of the services provided.

Can the County elaborate on what the performance based measures are?  Do Contractors have to reach certain target numbers in order to be reimbursed for services?
A25) The County is allowing room for bidders to list program costs and how many clients they intend on enrolling, which is why the RFP is not broken down on a cost by participant basis (see pages 7-8 of the RFP’s Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet). However, the County does want organizations to meet certain benchmarks throughout the process, so that funding is tied to the achievement of certain outcomes. Bidders are given the autonomy to provide program cost for their specific organizations, because every program is unique. 

Please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES), which contains revised performance measures. 
Q26) The County has stated that this is a performance-based program.  Each student will not be on the same level academically or have the same social or soft skills; so although they might have a desire to attend college, the college readiness might not be there (e.g., due to stress and rigor of environment).  In order to reach benchmarks, if a student is not prepared for college and realize the goals of this RFP, will the County have an evaluation tool for assessing program criteria, explaining the outcomes and why?

A26) Section G (DELIVERABLES) [revised in Addendum No. 2] and Section R (INVOICING) [in the RFP] clarify what the terms of payment for this contract will be.  The County will need to negotiate payment terms based on the responses received, lay out the performance based metrics, and specify the payment benchmarks, in addition to how Contractors will receive referrals. The intention of this RFP is not to serve clients that are not ready for the program or that will not be successful in completing the program, reaching set benchmarks.

Q27) Considering the way a college campus collects data versus the way the County views performance, those two things do not necessarily align--particularly with the County’s performance-based goals and objectives.  To what extent can this RFP go towards building certain capacities? Can some of the budget for this proposal be used to allocate funds for personal development for staff, counselors, etc. in order to build the measurement tools to move forward?
A27) The intention of this RFP is direct service, not capacity building.  Any requested capacity building efforts can be built into indirect cost, which will remain at the industry standard of 10%.

Q28) Can the County please clarify the allowable expenditures on personnel? Professional development and training seemed to be only allowable in indirect costs, and material support to students seemed to be a clear allowable.  Supporting staffing is still a little unclear. Can the County please clarify allowable allocation of the monies, by percentage if possible, for staffing needs to receive referred clients?
A28) Personnel expenditures should include FTEs that will support the implementation of the proposed program.  There is no specific percentage that the County is seeking to allocate specifically for staffing.  Each Bidder should budget their request based on their actual program costs, and those budgets will be reviewed by the County Selection Committee and judged for reasonableness of cost.  

Q29) With the current benchmarks, 95% of students will not be successful in obtaining a degree or credential within the term of this contract. Will the County consider creating other attainable benchmarks for this RFP within the one-year time frame? For example, semester completion or mid-point markers. 
A29) The County wants to make sure the highest level of proposals are received for review.  There is an individualized nature to each organization, and the County wants to be reflective of that.  Because programs will be individualized, the County will negotiate benchmarks with vendors during the negotiation phase; but payment terms will be tied to performance-based measures.

Also, please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES). 
Q30) If a student drops out of school because they received a viable job that will take care of their needs, some programs would consider that a success.  The County, however, might view that drop out as a failure. The purpose of this RFP is to get students to achieve a level of success.  What will be the determining factor for setting outcomes?  Would the County consider a drop out for a good paying job as a success?
A30) Please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES). 
Q31) On page 6 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), under Item 4 (Geographic Distribution of Service), the provides a breakdown of the target population by major city/region.  Is each bidder expected to meet the same requirement of breakdown population?
A31) For this RFP, funding will not not be broken down by area.
Q32) Page 23 of RFP, Section G (DELIVERABLES), Item 5.c., states:
Within six months of graduation, at least 50% of graduated students will be gainfully employed at a living wage in their desired field and/or continuing their education at another accredited institution of higher education or technical school.
What is considered a living wage?
A32) Please refer to Addendum No. 2 for revised Section G (DELIVERABLES).
Q33) On page 8 of the RFP, there is a table references a Transportation program.  Will the County be able to provide or leverage any transportation services that students might require?  Or should transportation costs be included in the Bidders’ proposals?
A33) The RFP for AB109 Direct Services: Transportation (that is referenced on page of 8 of the RFP) is for a different purpose.  Probation Officers do sometimes provide bus tickets to clients.  However, Bidders should include transportation costs in their proposal if they deem it an area of benefit to clients. 
In addition, the County may be able to provide connections to other contracted vendors for support services (e.g., housing, employment, etc.).
Q34) On page 8 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, the Budget Form Template under TOTAL DIRECT COSTS states:
FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR BARRIER REMOVAL & EDUCATION RESOURCES (WILL BE PAID ON A REIMBURSEMENT BASIS)

Does the County have any restrictions on what bidders can list in this section? Can bidders list things like textbooks, monetary incentives, etc.? 
A34) Textbooks and direct monetary incentives are included in this section, as would be transportation.  To clarify, it is on a reimbursement basis up to the budgeted amount; it is not a separate budget. 

All Bidders will be evaluated for the reasonableness of their costs. There is no cap to the expenses, but it should be justifiable based on the clients served.

Q35) On page 8 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, can the County clarify how bidders know what the NUMBER OF CLIENTS TO BE SERVED is?  Or does that refer to the capacity of clients that can be served by a program?
A35) The NUMBER OF CLIENTS TO BE SERVED should represent the Bidders program capacity over a one-year contract period with the budgeted amount of funds requested.
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